
Planning Board 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

March 11, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of February 12, 2024, Meeting Minutes  

3. City Council Actions Update 

4. Request to modify the conditional zoning district, B-2(CD), of three lots, totaling +/- 6.19-
acres and located at Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane (GPINs 9824046036, 
9824049256, and 9824038914) to allow for a farm supplies and equipment retail use by 
Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0, LLC. 

5. New Business 
 
6. Adjournment 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: htps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6sXhsT6H2Xk.  

Members Present:  Members Absent: 
Edward Tulauskas, Chair David Scott 
Judy Taylor, Vice Chair Gale Pettiford 
Colin Cannell 
William Chapman 
Kurt Pearson 
Keith Hoover 
Susan Semonite 

City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 
Briana Perkins, City Planner 
Kirk Montgomery, IT Director 

1. Call to Order
At 6:30 p.m. Chair Tulauskas called the meeting to order.

2. Approval of January 16, 2023, Meeting Minutes
Judy Taylor made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. William Chapman seconded the
motion, which passed unanimously.

3. Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 1.2 acres and located on S. Third Street (GPINs:
9815913029 and 9815902977) from R-20, Residential District, to R-12, Residential District, by Holly
Gilliam.

Holly Gilliam requests to rezone two lots totaling +/- 1.2 acres located on S. Third Street (GPINs
9815913029 and 9815902977), from R-20 to R-12. The rezoning would allow the properties to be
subdivided into three lots. The properties are located within City Limits and in the Secondary
Growth Area identified by Mebane By Design, the Comprehensive Land Development Plan.

Ashley Ownbey provided a more detailed overview and PowerPoint presenta�on of the request.

Blake Giliam, son of the applicant, provided that he planned on construc�ng three nice homes on
the site and preserving exis�ng trees on the proper�es. Blake Giliam said that when clearing the
property, a lot of the kudzu was removed that was also growing into the neighboring church’s
property. He said a�er speaking with the church, that they were okay with the proposed use of the
proper�es. He also explained the three homes would blend in with the surrounding proper�es.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6sXhsT6H2Xk


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

Susan Semonite asked if all driveways would be off S. Third Street. Blake Giliam responded all 
driveways would be on S. Third Street. 

Colin Cannell asked if the property lines were moving. Blake Giliam said yes, the plan was to create 
three equal size lots. 

Olivia Ruffin, 204 Beauregard Lane, asked what size homes would be put on the lot and what type of 
homes they would be. Ms. Ruffin also expressed concern about traffic on S. Third Street. Blake 
Giliam responded that the homes would be about 1,500 – 2,000 square feet single-family homes. 

Holly Orlowski, 610 S. Fourth Street, asked how deep into the proper�es the houses would sit. Blake 
Giliam replied that the homes would be no closer than where the proper�es had been cleared. Holly 
Orlowski also asked if the houses would be toward the front of the proper�es. Blake Giliam 
responded that the homes would meet the minimum required setback. 

Kurt Pearson commented on the exis�ng R-12 zoning and commented that the requested zoning 
seemed appropriate. Colin Cannell added that two houses could be built by-right and it was just a 
mater of adding another house. 

Keith Hoover made a mo�on to approve the request as follows: 
Motion to approve the R-12 zoning as presented. 

Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential
in nature (Mebane CLP, p. 66).

Kurt Pearson seconded the mo�on, which passed unanimously. 

4. Request to modify the condi�onal zoning district, B-2(CD), of three lots, totaling +/- 6.19-acres and
located at Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane (GPINs 9824046036, 9824049256, and 9824038914)
to allow for a farm supplies and equipment retail use by Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0, LLC.

Mike Fox, an atorney represen�ng the applicant, asked the Planning Board for a con�nua�on of the
request to the March mee�ng. Mr. Fox stated that a neighborhood mee�ng has not been held, and
that they wanted to make sure the mee�ng occurred to receive feedback from neighbors before the
request was considered by the Planning Board.

Kurt Pearson made a motion to continue the request by Hendon Tiller 3.0, LLC. William Chapman
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 
5. Request to establish R-8 (CD) zoning on two proper�es (GPINs: 9824530199 and 9824523988) 

totaling +/- 12.01 acres at 7515 Bowman Road, located outside of the Mebane Extraterritorial 
Jurisdic�on (ETJ) in Orange County, for a development of 89 townhomes by Bowman Rd 1, LLC. 
 
Bowman Rd 1, LLC requests to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/-12.01 acres 
preliminarily addressed at 7515 Bowman Road (GPINs 9824530199 and 9824523988) from Orange 
County AR to R-8(CD). The property is located outside of the Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdic�on 
(ETJ) in Orange County. The request is for the development of 89 townhomes. The proper�es are 
under contract to purchase, con�ngent upon approval of the condi�onal rezoning. The applicant 
proposed the following conditions as part of the conditional rezoning request: 
 
Requested Conditions 
 

• Minimum 8- foot side yard setback for end units, 10-foot side street setback, and minimum 
15-foot rear yard setback. 

• Provide a payment in lieu of public recreation in the amount of $54,041. 
• Provide multi-modal improvements with a 10-foot multi-use path along Bowman Road and 

eft and right turn lanes at the development’s entrance. 
 
The site-specific plan and staff report are provided in the meeting agenda packet available here. 
 
Briana Perkins provided a more detailed overview and PowerPoint presenta�on of the request. 
 
Amanda Hodierne, atorney represen�ng Bowman Rd 1, LLC, introduced the project team from 
Bowman Rd, 1 LLC, including Cliff Minsley, Dwayne Dixon, Daniel Scarlet, and Brad Koch. She also 
said that Aden Stoltzfus, the civil engineer for the project, was in atendance to answer technical 
ques�ons. 
 
Amanda Hodierne presented the request. She men�oned that the number of townhomes allowed 
by the R-8 zoning district density standards is 115, and the applicant is showing a plan for 89 
townhomes. Amanda Hodierne reviewed the property’s loca�on in an industrial growth strategy as 
iden�fied by the Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The growth area allows for mul�-family or 
workforce housing in close proximity to the industrial uses. She said that the project focused on the 
goal of providing appropriate housing to match the workforce defini�on by HUD of “housing that is 
affordable for those earning between 80% and 120% of the area median income (AMI)”. She also 
provided that using the Fannie Mae AMI Lookup Tool, that 80% of the area’s AMI of $108,500 is 
$86,800. 
 
Amanda Hodierne also provided that the R-8(CD) zoning was chosen to be consistent with the 
neighboring Meadowstone development. She men�oned that there was an increased setback of 30-
feet from Bowman Road, 4.69 acres of open space, private recrea�onal ameni�es, and public 

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-february-12-2024/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 
streets. She also provided that the 8-foot side yard condi�on was for those adjacent to open space 
and the rear yards largely abut open space or buffers. Amanda Hodierne also showed renderings and 
provided architectural commitments for the development. She stated that a neighborhood mee�ng 
was held virtually in early January, with no par�cipants. 
 
Susan Semonite asked if the townhomes were for rent or for sale. Amanda Hodierne replied that the 
townhomes would be for sale. 
 
Colin Cannell said that the illustra�on of the shaded pavilion had a playground, but a playground was 
not shown on the plans. Amanda Hodierne replied that the photo provided was just the best 
depic�on of the pavilion, and the project would not include a playground. 
 
Susan Semonite asked about the townhome units on the site plan that appeared close to each other. 
Amanda Hodierne replied that the lines are the boundaries of the property, which are 15 feet from 
the units, and there is some extra common element. 
 
Colin Canell asked how the property was not currently in Mebane’s ETJ. Ashley Ownbey replied that 
Meadowstone, Bowman Village, and Bowman Place all required annexa�on before the proper�es 
were rezoned. Colin Cannell asked if the ETJ was based off a certain point. Ashley Ownbey replied 
that the City has not expanded the ETJ in many years. Kurt Pearson added that the ETJ does not 
expand automa�cally, and that Mebane would have to make a request. Amanda Hodierne also 
pointed out that Orange County representa�ves were part of the ini�al review to ensure no issues or 
concerns. 
 
Colin Cannell asked about the workforce housing and how the Fannie Mae AMI calculated number 
correlated. Amanda Hodierne replied that the project is targe�ng affordability guidance and hi�ng 
achievable housing stock. She explained how to consider the income of $86,800 in terms of housing 
costs by applying the 28% or 30% rule, which helps her client create benchmarks. 
 
Colin Cannell asked how the workforce housing line be drawn to determine if it qualifies as being 
consistent with guidance in Mebane’s comprehensive plan. Amanda Hodierne replied that the 
numbers would be used as a guide for appropriate housing even though price points could not be a 
factor in rezoning cases and that the project would keep within the conceptual goals of the 
comprehensive plan. 
 
Ashley Ownbey commented that the developer originally asked about mul�-family housing, and staff 
did not recommend mul�-family in this area. She also said that the Unified Development Ordinance 
defines townhomes differently from single-family detached and staff considered the property to not 
be a single-family, detached subdivision where the size of the property adds to the overall cost. Colin 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 
Canell commented that not being able to use price points for rezoning cases where workforce 
housing is recommended and not defined puts the City in a bind. 
 
Judy Taylor commented that it was difficult to define workforce housing since it is viewed differently 
depending on the area and having HUD put a specific defini�on does not help. Colin Cannell said 
that his interpreta�on of the comprehensive plan would be the housing serve the industrial uses in 
that area such as Morinaga.  
 
Cliff Minsley, 3301 Atlan�c Avenue in Raleigh, said that they based the workforce housing on the 
economic development of the area. He listed Morinaga, Walmart distribu�on center, and Lidl’s 
distribu�on facility as workforces that the development was targe�ng. He said that the designed 
units would fall within the $300,000-400,000 price range, keeping with the incomes in the workforce 
housing range. 
 
Colin Cannell asked about the growth map having Meadowstone within the industrial zone and not 
being considered as workforce housing at the �me it was approved. Ashley Ownbey replied that the 
growth map was outdated. She said that when the Buckhorn Area Plan was presented to City 
Council, an amendment to the comprehensive plan removed the Meadowstone property from the 
industrial growth area. 
 
Colin Cannell voiced his concern that more residen�al was being built in an industrial zone and asked 
why the City was allowing the excep�on of housing closer to industrial uses. Ashley Ownbey replied 
that the City has budgeted to update the Comprehensive Land Development Plan and review of the 
growth areas is expected. She said that more industrial development was emerging around West Ten 
Road and Buckhorn Road. She suggested West Ten Road might serve as a boundary between 
residen�al and industrial areas in the upcoming plan update. 
 
Amanda Hodierne commented that new studies have found that it was a mistake to remove housing 
from employment zones. She said that housing in industrial zones could be done, as long as it was 
carefully planned.  She also said that they had reached out to David Putnam, with the Alamance 
Chamber, to ask if housing in the industrial area presented issues. She said that Mr. Putnam was not 
concerned because Bowman Road and Ben Wilson Road already have a residen�al feel, and most of 
the industrial uses would be closer to the easier access points. She also men�oned that there was 
already a natural stream corridor that helped separate the residen�al and industrial uses. 
 
Tom Boney Jr., Alamance News, asked about the geography of the area median income (AMI). Colin 
Cannell replied that the area was Orange County. Mr. Boney asked exactly how broad the area was. 
Mr. Cannell replied that the area only includes the perimeter of Orange County and not Durham and 
Chapel Hill. He added that just to the west in Alamance County, the AMI was much lower.  



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 
Tom Boney, Jr. asked for the Alamance County AMI. Ashley Ownbey replied that the 2023 AMI for 
the Burlington MSA was $78,800. Mr. Boney asked if he was correct that the townhome price point 
was es�mated at $300,000 to $400,000. Cliff Minsley confirmed the price point. 
 
Judy Taylor made a mo�on to approve the request as follows: 

Motion to approve the R-8 (CD) zoning as presented. 
  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for properties within the City’s G-2 Industrial (Part of BEDD) and proposes 
workforce housing (Mebane CLP, p. 76); and 

• Provides a greenway and open space in a developing area, connecting to other 
locations, consistent with Open Space and Natural Resource Protection Goal 4.3 (p. 
17, 89, & 90). 

William Chapman seconded the mo�on, which passed unanimously. 

Chairman Tulauskas noted that the request will go to the City Council on March 4th at 6:00 p.m.  

6. Revisions to the Updated Planning Board Rules of Procedure 
Ashley Ownbey informed the Board about the revisions made to the previously reviewed Planning 
Board Rules of Procedure, highlighting two revisions that included a sentence in the introduction 
paragraph and in the order of business section. 
 
Colin Cannell asked how the City defined polices. Ashley Ownbey replied that a policy example 
would be the “Paper Flow Policy” related to wastewater permitting. She referenced the Evolve 
project included a requested condition related to this policy. Colin Cannell asked if policies had to be 
written for the Board to consider them. Ashley Ownbey replied that the Board should consider 
written policies. 
 
Colin Cannell expressed concern with the Planning Board only considering the written plans and 
policies. He referenced the Bowman Road Townhomes and mentioned how the Board should 
consider residential being allowed in an industrial growth area. He also commented that the 
Planning Board should have access to informal amendments to plans and policies. Ashley Ownbey 
replied that the main purpose of the revisions was to recognize that the City Council is the 
policymaking body for the City of Mebane.  
 
Colin Cannell made a motion to approve the Planning Board Rules of Procedure with the revisions as 
presented. William Chapman seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

February 12, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 
7. New Business 

Ashley Ownbey informed the Board that the City Council will hold public hearings at their March 
meeting for the Recreation and Parks Comprehensive Master Plan and the updated Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
 

8. Adjournment 
Chair Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:24 p.m. 

  



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #4 
RZ 23-01 
Conditional Rezoning Amendment – 
Tractor Supply 

Presenter 
Rachel Gaffney, City Planner 

Applicant 
Hendon Properties, LLC 
Attn. Mark Tiller 
3445 Peachtree Rd NE #465 
Atlanta, GA 30326 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

  

Zoning Map 
 

 

Property 
3995 Wilson Road 

Alamance County GPINs: 
9824046036, 
9824038914, 
9824049256   

Proposed Zoning 
B-2 (CD) – revised 
conditions 

Current Zoning 
B-2 (CD) 

Size 
 +/-6.19 acres  

Surrounding Zoning 
B-2 (CD), B-2, R-20, 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Commercial, Residential 

Utilities 
Available 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
Yes 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Application Brief 
See Planning Project Report for more details. 

Recommendations 

Technical Review Committee: 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the revised site 
plan three times and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the 
comments.  

Planning Staff: 
The proposed development “Tractor Supply” is consistent with the 
guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan.  

Zoning & Land Use Report 

Jurisdiction: Mebane City Limits 

Proposed Use By-Right (Yes/No): No 

Type of Rezoning Request: Conditional 

Special Use Request (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Mebane By Design (Yes/No):  Yes 

Utilities Report 

Available Utilities (Yes/No): Yes 

Adequate Stormwater Control (Yes/No): Yes 

Innovative Stormwater Control (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Long-Range Utility Plan (Yes/No): Yes 

Transportation Report 

Traffic Impact Analysis Required (Yes/No): Yes 

Multi-Modal Improvements (Yes/No): Yes 

Consistency with Bike/Ped Transportation Plan (Yes/No):  Yes 

 
 
 
  



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

Summary 
Hendon Properties, LLC is requesting approval to revise the conditions for the +/- 6.19-acre property 
located on Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane (GPINs 9824046036, 9824038914, 9824049256), zoned B-2 
(CD) to allow for a farm supplies and equipment retail use. The requested conditions reflect that Wilson 
Road will no longer be extended and a Traffic Impact Analysis was submitted to address the potential 
impacts of the proposed development without that connection. The property is located in Alamance County 
in the Mebane City Limits. 

The +/- 6.19-acre parcel has been subdivided into three lots. Lot 4 will be developed as the farm supplies 
and equipment retail use, Lot 5 will be reserved for future commercial development, and Lot 6 will be 
primarily utilized as a stormwater management area. The revised site-specific plan proposes that Lot 5 will 
be subdivided into two lots. The proposed new Lot 7 is intended to be sold to Chick-Fil-A for use as a staff 
and overflow parking lot. The site plan shows three driveways, with two on Forest Oaks Lane and one on 
Wilson Road. The driveway on Wilson Road will provide shared access for the proposed Lots 4, 5, and 7.  

Additional changes to the site plan originally approved by the Mebane City Council include: 
• A reduction in the amount of curb and gutter on Forest Oaks Lane. The new site plan shows curb 

and gutter on Forest Oaks Lane opposite the site ending at the second commercial driveway on 
Forest Oaks Lane. The original site plan had curb and gutter extending past the first residential 
driveway on Forest Oaks Lane. 

• The addition of crosswalks at the intersection of Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane and a mid-block 
crossing of Wilson Road. 

• A minor modification to the parking lot layout around the entrance to the fenced outdoor display 
area. 

• The 3,827 SF Garden Center has been changed to a 2,640 SF Live Goods Center. This has increased 
the outdoor display area from 24,040 SF (14.58% of the site area) to 26,745 SF (16.22% of the site 
area). Of the total outdoor display area, 2,640 SF will be covered, 19,654 SF will be fenced, and the 
remaining 4,451 SF will be uncovered and unfenced.  

As the developer did not secure the right-of-way needed to extend Wilson Road, a TIA was submitted for 
this project. The developer is required to make the following improvements: 

• Provide a westbound left turn lane on Forest Oaks Road with adequate storage and taper, as 
requested by the NCDOT and the City of Mebane. 

• Compliance of multimodal transportation requirements will be examined by staff to ensure 
adequacy of pedestrian, bike, and transit facilities along the property frontage. Additional 
crosswalks shall be considered at the intersection of Wilson Road and Forest Oak Lane. 

 
The following conditions are proposed with the conditional rezoning request:  

 

 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the revised conditions of the B-2(CD) rezoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally commercial in nature 

(Mebane CLP, p. 66). 
 
OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the revised conditions of the B-2(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 

Applicant-Proposed Conditions of Zoning District Mebane UDO Requirements 

The stormwater pond shall be constructed for a 
100-year storm event. As noted on Sheet C4.0, 
the current design is considered by staff to be 
conceptual and additional design details are 
required with construction plans. 

Section 5-1 of the Mebane UDO requires 
development to comply with applicable stormwater 
management requirements. Stormwater review and 
permitting typically occurs during construction plan 
review.   

The applicant has requested a total outdoor 
display area of 26,745 SF or 16.22% of the site 
area. The breakdown of the proposed outdoor 
display area is as follows: 

• 2,640 SF Covered Area 
• 19,654 SF Fenced Area 
• 4,451 SF Other  

Section 4-7.8.H.2(c) of the Mebane UDO limits the 
outdoor area devoted to the display and sales of 
retail good to a maximum 15 percent of the net 
developable lot area.  



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 5 

3. Zoning Map 
4. Site Plan 
5. Planning Project Report  
6. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
7. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
8. Traffic Impact Analysis – click here to access. 

a. VHB TIA Review 
 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/public/share/web-s6ad6c8bac5ce42f8a5ed2d1f876721f2


Request to modify a conditional zoning district, B-2(CD),
by Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0 LLC

Rachel Gaffney, City Planner



Tractor Supply
Conditional Zoning Request

Request by Hendon Tiller 
Mebane 3.0 LLC

Three lots, totaling +/- 6.19 
acres

Existing zoning: B-2 (CD)

Requested zoning: B-2 (CD) –
revised conditions



Mebane City Limits

Annexation approved since last review

Tractor Supply
Conditional Zoning Request



Vacant except for gravel parking, forested

Surrounding uses include:

Restaurants

Retail

Medical and Veterinary offices, Fitness 
Gym, and Other Professional Service Uses

Residential

Tractor Supply
Conditional Zoning Request



Tractor Supply
Conditional Rezoning Request

Mebane By Design G-4 Secondary Growth Area



Modification of the B-2(CD) zoning is requested as 
the right-of-way for the required extension of Wilson 
Road could not be secured. The proposed 
development is still a farm supplies and equipment 
retail use as shown on site-specific plan.

Multi-modal Improvements:

Construction of a 5-foot sidewalk on the east side of 
Wilson Road and on the south side of Forest Oaks Lane. 
Addition of crosswalks at Forest Oaks Lane and Wilson 
Road

Road Improvements:

Construction of a westbound left turn lane on Forest 
Oaks Road with minimal storage and taper.

The amount of curb and gutter on Forest Oaks Lane has 
been reduced.

Proposed Conditions:

Stormwater pond constructed for a 100-year storm 
event.

Outdoor display area equal to 16.22% of total site area.

Tractor Supply
Conditional Zoning Request

Subdivision:

Revised site plan proposes that Lot 5 will 
be subdivided into Lot 5 and Lot 7. Lot 7 
will contain overflow/staff parking for 
Chick-Fil-A.









IMPERVIOUS SUMMARY TABLE

DEVELOPMENT DATA

VICINITY MAP

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

C1.0

1" = XXX'
1" = 40'

SITE

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

RSTOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1 800 632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
Proposed

Tractor Supply
Wilson Road

Mebane, North Carolina
Alamance County

CIVIL ENGINEERDEVELOPER

CURRENT PROPERTY OWNERS

Bowman North Carolina, Ltd.
4006 Barrett Drive, Suite 104

Raleigh, NC  27609
(919) 553-6570

mlowder@bowman.com
FIRM# F-1445

Hendon Properties, LLC
Attn. Mark Tiller

3445 Peachtree Rd NE #465
Atlanta, GA  30326

404-262-7400
mtiller@hendonproperties.com

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

GENERAL NOTE

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

FEE TABLE

Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0, LLC
Attn. Mark Tiller

3445 Peachtree Rd NE #465
Atlanta, GA  30326

404-262-7400
mtiller@hendonproperties.com



FOREST OAKS LANE S.R.2210

 

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

W
IL

S
O

N

R
O

A
D

 S
.R

.2
1

8
7

 
M

E
B

A
N

E
 O

A
K

S
 R

O
A

D
 S

.R
. 1007

 

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S S S S S S S S S S S

S

W
ILS

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

TWILA A. BUFFINGTON
DB 4427 PG 374

LOT 11
WOODHAVEN

PB 20 PG 39

N82°51'43"E

424.40'

S6°56'51"E

80.42'

S15°53'16"E

268.20'

S74°06'43"W336.06'

S62°51'46"W66.38'

N85°59'39"E
59.67'

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

C2.0

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

RSTOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1 800 632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

DEMOLITION NOTES:

CAUTIONARY NOTE

UTILITY STATEMENT

DEMOLITION LEGEND

CURVE TABLE
CURVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 105.66' 661.50' 9°09'07" S10°04'48"E 105.55'
C4 5.60' 170.00' 1°53'14" S25°12'56"E 5.60'
C7 44.74' 170.00' 15°04'43" S22°56'01"E 44.61'
C8 24.89' 230.00' 6°12'03" S27°22'21"E 24.88'

C10 73.08' 270.00' 15°30'26" S33°54'46"E 72.85'

SURVEY NOTE

TREE PROTECTION NOTE:



50' TYPE B BUFFER

10' TYPE B STREETYARD

10' TYPE B STREETYARD

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

30' SETBACK

N26°09'33"W
62.24'

N74°06'43"E

124.25'

S15°53'17"E

74.19'

S74°06'43"W178.26'

FOREST OAKS LANE S.R.2210

 

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

W
IL

S
O

N

R
O

A
D

 S
.R

.2
1

8
7

 
M

E
B

A
N

E
 O

A
K

S
 R

O
A

D
 S

.R
. 1007

 

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

W
ILS

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

TWILA A. BUFFINGTON
DB 4427 PG 374

LOT 11
WOODHAVEN

PB 20 PG 39

N82°51'43"E

424.40'

S6°56'51"E

80.42'

S15°53'16"E

268.20'

S74°06'43"W336.06'

S62°51'46"W66.38'

N85°59'39"E

59.67'

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

C3.0

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

STOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1 800 632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

GENERAL NOTES:

KEYNOTES

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

LC

FOREST OAKS LANE - NCDOT PAVEMENT SECTION

SITE LIGHTING NOTE

TREE PROTECTION NOTE:

STORMWATER NOTE

GENERAL NOTE



FOREST OAKS LANE S.R.2210

 

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

W
IL

S
O

N

R
O

A
D

 S
.R

.2
1

8
7

 
M

E
B

A
N

E
 O

A
K

S
 R

O
A

D
 S

.R
. 1007

 

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S S S S S S S S

S

W
ILS

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

TWILA A. BUFFINGTON
DB 4427 PG 374

LOT 11
WOODHAVEN

PB 20 PG 39

N82°51'43"E

424.40'

S6°56'51"E

80.42'

S15°53'16"E

268.20'

S74°06'43"W336.06'

S62°51'46"W66.38'

N85°59'39"E
59.67'

D

N26°09'33"W
62.24'

N74°06'43"E

124.25'

S15°53'17"E

74.19'

S74°06'43"W178.26'

G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N

C4.0

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

STOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1 800 632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

LEGEND

GRADING NOTES:

DRAINAGE NOTES:

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

CURVE TABLE
CURVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 105.66' 661.50' 9°09'07" S10°04'48"E 105.55'
C4 5.60' 170.00' 1°53'14" S25°12'56"E 5.60'
C7 44.74' 170.00' 15°04'43" S22°56'01"E 44.61'
C8 24.89' 230.00' 6°12'03" S27°22'21"E 24.88'

C10 73.08' 270.00' 15°30'26" S33°54'46"E 72.85'

TREE PROTECTION NOTE:

 NOTE:

STORMWATER NOTE

GENERAL NOTE

CURB NOTE



D

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

RL
RL

RL

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

RL
RL

RL

N26°09'33"W
62.24'

N74°06'43"E

124.25'

S15°53'17"E

74.19'

S74°06'43"W178.26'

FOREST OAKS LANE S.R.2210

 

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

W
IL

S
O

N

R
O

A
D

 S
.R

.2
1

8
7

 
M

E
B

A
N

E
 O

A
K

S
 R

O
A

D
 S

.R
. 1007

 

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S S S S S S S S S S S

S

W
ILS

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

TWILA A. BUFFINGTON
DB 4427 PG 374

LOT 11
WOODHAVEN

PB 20 PG 39

N82°51'43"E

424.40'

S6°56'51"E

80.42'

S15°53'16"E

268.20'

S74°06'43"W336.06'

S62°51'46"W66.38'

N85°59'39"E
59.67'

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C5.0

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

RSTOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1 800 632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

UTILITY NOTES:

CURVE TABLE
CURVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 105.66' 661.50' 9°09'07" S10°04'48"E 105.55'
C4 5.60' 170.00' 1°53'14" S25°12'56"E 5.60'
C7 44.74' 170.00' 15°04'43" S22°56'01"E 44.61'
C8 24.89' 230.00' 6°12'03" S27°22'21"E 24.88'

C10 73.08' 270.00' 15°30'26" S33°54'46"E 72.85'

 NOTE:

GENERAL NOTE



C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

C6.2

CURB/GUTTER DETAIL

STOP SIGN DETAIL

CONCRETE JOINTS

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ASPHALT/CONCRETE TRANSITION JOINT

PAVEMENT MARKINGS WHEEL STOP

1"

4

5

6

7 10

11

12
ACCESSIBLE PARKING DETAIL

2

SIGN DETAILS TYPICAL BOLLARD DETAIL3 9

VAN
ACCESSIBLE

IRKPA NG
DRE SRE EV

PENALTY
$100-500 FINE
TOW AWAY

ZONE

IRKPA NG
DRE SRE EV

PAVEMENT DETAILS

CO
NC

RE
TE

 P
AV

EM
EN

T
AS

PH
AL

TI
C 

PA
VE

M
EN

T

CONCRETE PAVEMENT DETAIL
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT DETAIL

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT DETAIL

OUTDOOR DISPLAY AREA CONCRETE DETAIL
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

1

BIKE RACK DETAIL
8

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

∅

∅∅

∅

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
13



50' TYPE B BUFFER

10' TYPE B STREETYARD

10' TYPE B STREETYARD

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

30' SETBACK

D

RL

R
L

RL

R
L

R
L

RL

R
L

R
L

RL

RL

RL

RL

R
L

RL

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

RL

R
L

RL

RL

RL

N26°09'33"W
62.24'

N74°06'43"E

124.25'

S15°53'17"E

74.19'

S74°06'43"W178.26'

FOREST OAKS LANE S.R.2210

 

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

W
IL

S
O

N

R
O

A
D

 S
.R

.2
1

8
7

 
M

E
B

A
N

E
 O

A
K

S
 R

O
A

D
 S

.R
. 1007

 

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S S S S S S S S S S S

S

W
ILS

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

TWILA A. BUFFINGTON
DB 4427 PG 374

LOT 11
WOODHAVEN

PB 20 PG 39

N82°51'43"E

424.40'

S6°56'51"E

80.42'

S15°53'16"E

268.20'

S74°06'43"W336.06'

S62°51'46"W66.38'

N85°59'39"E
59.67'

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

C7.0

LANDSCAPING NOTES:

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES:

Know what's below.

R

Call before you dig.

STOP
IT'S THE LAW

CALL 1-800-632-4949

BEFORE YOU DIG

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

IRRIGATION NOTE:

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

MASTER PLANT LIST

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

Lt
d.

40
06

 B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 D

R

S
ui

te
 1

04

R
A

LE
IG

H
, N

C
 2

76
09

P
ho

ne
: (

91
9)

55
3-

65
70

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT
USE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Tr
ac

to
r S

up
pl

y
W

ils
on

 R
oa

d
M

eb
an

e,
 N

C 
 M
el

vil
le

 T
ow

ns
hi

p  A
la

m
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y

CURVE TABLE
CURVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 105.66' 661.50' 9°09'07" S10°04'48"E 105.55'
C4 5.60' 170.00' 1°53'14" S25°12'56"E 5.60'
C7 44.74' 170.00' 15°04'43" S22°56'01"E 44.61'
C8 24.89' 230.00' 6°12'03" S27°22'21"E 24.88'

C10 73.08' 270.00' 15°30'26" S33°54'46"E 72.85'

TREE PROTECTION NOTE:

GENERAL NOTE

SIGHT TRIANGLE NOTE



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 03/06/2024 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 23-01 - Amended 
PROJECT NAME Tractor Supply  

APPLICANT 

Hendon Properties, LLC 
Attn. Mark Tiller 
3445 Peachtree Rd NE #465 
Atlanta, GA 30326 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
SUMMARY OF CHANGES …………………………………………………………………………………………………..PAGE 2 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 3 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 5 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 8 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION ............................................................................................... PAGE 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

PAGE 2 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES: 
 
Since RZ 23-01 was approved on April 3, 2023, the +/- 6.19-acre parcel has been subdivided into three lots. Lot 4 will be 
developed as the farm supplies and equipment retail use, Lot 5 will be reserved for future commercial development, and 
Lot 6 will be primarily utilized as a stormwater management area. The revised site-specific plan proposes that Lot 5 will be 
subdivided into two lots. The proposed new Lot 7 is intended to be sold to Chick-Fil-A for use as a staff and overflow parking 
lot. The site plan shows three driveways, with two on Forest Oaks Lane and one on Wilson Road. The driveway on Wilson 
Road will provide shared access for the proposed Lots 4, 5, and 7. The City Council approved the property’s annexation into 
Mebane’s City Limits on June 5, 2023 and the annexation plat was recorded on June 29, 2023 in the Alamance County 
Register of Deeds. 

Additional changes to the site plan originally approved by the Mebane City Council include: 

• A reduction in the amount of curb and gutter on Forest Oaks Lane. The new site plan shows curb and gutter on 
Forest Oaks Lane opposite the site ending at the second commercial driveway on Forest Oaks Lane. The original 
site plan had curb and gutter extending past the first residential driveway on Forest Oaks Lane. 

• The addition of crosswalks at the intersection of Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane and a mid-block crossing of 
Wilson Road. 

• A minor modification to the parking lot layout around the entrance to the fenced outdoor display area. 

• The 3,827 SF Garden Center has been changed to a 2,640 SF Live Goods Center. This has increased the outdoor 
display area from 24,040 SF (14.58% of the site area) to 26,745 SF (16.22% of the site area). Of the total outdoor 
display area, 2,640 SF will be covered, 19,654 SF will be fenced, and the remaining 4,451 SF will be uncovered and 
unfenced.  
 

As the developer did not secure the right-of-way needed to extend Wilson Road, a TIA was submitted for this project. The 
developer is required to make the following improvements: 

• Provide a westbound left turn lane on Forest Oaks Road with adequate storage and taper, as requested by the 
NCDOT and the City of Mebane. 

• Compliance of multimodal transportation requirements will be examined by staff to ensure adequacy of pedestrian, 
bike, and transit facilities along the property frontage. Additional crosswalks shall be considered at the intersection 
of Wilson Road and Forest Oak Lane. 

 
 



 

PAGE 3 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE B-2 (CD) (General Business Conditional District) 
REQUESTED ACTION B-2 (CD) (General Business Conditional District) – Revised Conditions 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant, Gravel Parking Lot, Forested 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 6.19 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0 LLC 
3445 Peachtree Rd NE #465 
Atlanta, GA 30326 
GPINs: 9824046036, 9824049256, and 9824038914 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to modify the conditional zoning district, B-2(CD), of three lots, totaling +/- 
6.19-acres and located at Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane (GPINs 9824046036, 
9824049256, and 9824038914) to allow for a farm supplies and equipment retail use 
by Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0, LLC.  

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

The properties to the west, across Wilson Road, are zoned B-2 (CD), General Business 
Conditional District. The properties to the north, across Forest Oaks Lane, are a mix 
of B-2, General Business and R-20, Residential. The properties to the east and south 
are all zoned R-20, Residential.  

SITE HISTORY 

The property has historically been sparsely forested although it is currently taxed as 
vacant commercial land. The gravel parking lot, utilized by Chick-Fil-A, was added 
between 2018 and 2020. A stormwater pond, currently serving the Wendy’s and 
Chick-fil-A developments, is also on the property. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the B-2 (CD) and B-2 zoning of the 
properties to the north and west of the subject property. The proposed development 
will introduce a commercial use in close proximity to an existing residential 
neighborhood. However, the proposed site plan includes a stormwater control area 
on the east side of the property and a semi-opaque buffer. 



 

PAGE 4 

 



 

PAGE 5 

 
LAND USE REPORT 
 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant, Gravel Parking Lot, Forested 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning to develop three lots, totaling +/- 
6.19 acres, with frontages on Wilson Road and Forest Oaks Lane (GPINs: 
9824046036, 9824049256, and 9824038914) for a farm supplies and 
equipment retail use. The applicant intends to re-subdivide the property 
into four lots. Lot 4 will be utilized for the farm supplies and equipment 
retail use, Lot 5 will be reserved for future commercial development, Lot 6 
will be utilized as a stormwater management area, and Lot 7 is proposed to 
be sold to Chick-Fil-A for their use as a staff and overflow parking lot. 

PROPOSED ZONING B-2 (CD) (General Business Conditional District) – revised conditions 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 6.19 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The subject property is located just east of an arterial commercial strip 
along Mebane Oaks Road. The properties to the west are developed with a 
Wendy’s, Chick-Fil-A, and Aspen Dental. The properties to the north include 
Southern Animal Hospital and a multi-use commercial building that includes 
a gym, insurance office, and other similar uses. There are developed 
residential lots to the south, east, and northeast of the subject property.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

 
The applicant proposes a 5’ sidewalk on the east side of Wilson Road and 
on the south side of Forest Oaks Lane. Curb and gutter will be constructed 
on Forest Oaks Lane as shown on the site plan and approved by the NCDOT. 
The revised site plan shows a reduction in how far the curb and gutter 
extends along Forest Oaks Lane on the opposite side of the site. 
 

CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED 
CONDITIONS 

The applicant has offered to construct the stormwater pond for a 100-year 
storm event. As noted on Sheet C4.0, the current design is considered by staff 
to be conceptual and additional design details are required with construction 
plans. 
 
The applicant has requested a total outdoor display area of 26,745 SF or 16.22% 
of the site area. Section 4-7.8.H.2(c) of the Mebane UDO limits the outdoor area 
devoted to the display and sales of retail good to a maximum 15 percent of the 
net developable lot area. Of the total proposed outdoor display area, 2,640 SF 
will be covered, 19,654 SF will be fenced, and the remaining 4,451 SF will be 
uncovered and unfenced. 
 

 
 
 



 

PAGE 6 

 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary 
 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

  

   

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 7 

 



 

PAGE 8 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the anticipated 
water use for the proposed development is 2,500 gallons per 
day and the anticipated wastewater use is less than 2,500 
gallons per day. The development will be served by connecting 
to Mebane’s existing 12-inch water line on Forest Oaks Lane. 
The project will also be connected to the existing sewer system 
by extending a new 6-inch private sewer service line from an 
existing manhole located at Forest Oaks Lane. Additionally, a 6-
inch private sewer service will be extended from a newly set 
manhole over Mebane’s 8-inch gravity line in Forest Oaks Lane, 
through Lot 4 and ending at the Lot 5 property line with a 
private easement dedicated over the service line.  

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo. 

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project.  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject property is situated south of Forest Oaks Lane and 
east of Wilson Road. The site plan features two proposed 
driveway entrances from Forest Oaks Lane and one proposed 
driveway entrance from Wilson Road. The driveway from Wilson 
Road is proposed to provide access to Lots 4, 5, and 7 of the 
proposed subdivision. Both Forest Oaks Land and Wilson Road 
are NCDOT maintained roads. 
 
NCDOT does not provide traffic count data for Forest Oaks Lane 
or Wilson Road. Mebane Oaks Road, to the west of the site, had 
an average daily traffic volume of 26,000 trips in 2021.  
 
The section of Forest Oaks Lane adjacent to the subject property 
has a safety score of 0, being the best possible score, in 2022. 
However, from 2017 to 2021 there were 42 crashes at the 



 

PAGE 9 

intersection of Forest Oaks Lane and Mebane Oaks Road. This 
section of Wilson Road does not have a safety score.  

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

As the developer did not secure the right-of-way needed to 
extend Wilson Road, a TIA was submitted for this project. The 
developer is required to make the following improvements: 

• Provide a westbound left turn lane on Forest Oaks Road 
with adequate storage and taper (as requested by 
NCDOT and the City of Mebane. 

• Construct all drives with one ingress lane and one 
egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 
operating under stop-control. Due to intersection 
spacing concerns, permitting of a driveway at Site Drive 
1 on Forest Oaks Lane is subject to meeting adequate 
design and sight distance requirements. 

• Compliance of multimodal transportation requirements 
will be examined by staff to ensure adequacy of 
pedestrian, bike, and transit facilities along the property 
frontage. Additional crosswalks shall be considered at 
the intersection of Wilson Road and Forest Oak Lane. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to construct a sidewalk for the length of 
the property on the south side of Forest Oaks Lane and on the 
east side of Wilson Road. Bike racks will also be provided in 
accordance with UDO requirements. Crosswalks will be provided 
as shown on the site plan. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 



 

PAGE 10 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Tractor Supply” is consistent with 
the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The project is in 
harmony with surrounding commercial uses. 

 



W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

 
 

 

February 6, 2024 

 
Mr. Matt Lowder, PE 
Bowman North Carolina, Ltd. 
4006 Barrett Drive, Suite 104 

Raleigh, NC 27609 

 
Subject: Tractor Supply – Water and Sewer System Layout 

Dear Mr. Lowder: 

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Tractor Supply and in accordance with the UDO, this memo is provided to 
indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City 
standards based on the following: 

 
A. Water system – The project is proposed to be served by connecting to Mebane’s existing 12-inch water line 

on Forest Oaks Lane. Extension of private domestic (2-inch), irrigation service (1-inch) and fire line (6-inch) are 
shown with appropriate backflow prevention and fire hydrant locations. The estimated water use is 2,500 
gallons per day (100 gallons/1,000 square feet per State 2T rules). The City has adequate water capacity 
available to meet the project’s domestic demand and fire flow requirements. 

 
B. Sanitary Sewer system – The project is proposed to be served by extending a new 6-inch private sewer service 

line from an existing manhole located at Forest Oaks Lane to the new building by steel encasement fore and 
jack under Forest Oaks Lane. Additionally, a 6-inch private sewer service will be extended from a newly set 
manhole over Mebane’s 8-inch gravity line in Forest Oaks Lane, through lot 4 and ending at the lot 5 property 
line with a private easement being over the service line by steel encasement bore and jack under Forest Oaks 
Lane. The estimated wastewater from this project is less than 2,500 gallons per day (100 gallons/1,000 square 
feet per State 2T rules). The City has adequate wastewater capacity available at the downstream Southeast 
Regional Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet this demand. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 

Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 

CC: Ashley Ownbey, Dev. Director 

Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 

 
CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

http://www/
mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

 

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 

Date: February 6, 2024 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

From: Franz K. Holt, P.E. 

Subject: Tractor Supply – City Engineering review 

 
City Engineering has reviewed Site Plans submitted for Tractor Supply on Wilson Road (Extension) dated January 

11, 2024, prepared by Matt Lowder, P.E. with Bowman North Carolina, Ltd. Of Raleigh, NC. Our technical review 

comments are as follows: 

A. General Summary 

1. The Tractor Supply includes a 21,147 square foot facility (one story) and 3,827 square foot garden 

center on a newly created lot no. 4 (3.79 acres), with lot no. 7 (0.31 acre) designated for Chick-Fil-A 

employee overflow parking and lot no. 6 (0.75 acres) designated as a stormwater management lot. 

The subdivision is along City owned/maintained Wilson Road (Extension) and NCDOT 

owned/maintained Forest Oaks Lane S.R. 2210. 

2. On-site stormwater controls are proposed that treat the runoff from a 1-inch rain and reduce the peak 

stormwater discharge rates for post construction runoff is no more than the pre-development rates 

for up to a 100-year storm event. 

3. City of Mebane public water and sewer lines are available for service extensions to the facility. 

Additionally, a private sewer extension will be made to lot no. 5 through lot no. 4. 

4. Street Access has one proposed driveway connection to Wilson Road (Extension) and two 

connections to Forest Oaks Lane with a proposed left turn lane onto Wilson Road (Extension) from 

Forest Oaks Lane. 

5. The plans include a sidewalk along the south side of Forest Oaks Lane and the east side of Wilson 

Road (Extension). 

6. NCDOT plan approvals, driveway permits, and encroachment agreements are required by NCDOT for 

the proposed improvements to and along Forest Oaks Lane. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

 

 

 
B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Tractor Supply and in accordance with the UDO, this memo is 

provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it 

acceptable and meets City standards based on the following: 

1. Water system – The project is proposed to be served by connecting to Mebane’s existing 12-inch water 

line on Forest Oaks Lane. Extension of private domestic (2-inch), irrigation service (1-inch) and fire 

line (6-inch) are shown with appropriate backflow prevention and fire hydrant locations. The 

estimated water use is 2,500 gallons per day (100 gallons/1,000 square feet per State 2T rules). The 

City has adequate water capacity available to meet the project’s domestic demand and fire flow 

requirements. 

2. Sanitary Sewer system – The project is proposed to be served by extending a new 6-inch private sewer 

service line from an existing manhole located at Forest Oaks Lane to the new building by steel 

encasement fore and jack under Forest Oaks Lane. Additionally, a 6-inch private sewer service will be 

extended from a newly set manhole over Mebane’s 8-inch gravity line in Forest Oaks Lane, through 

lot 4 and ending at the lot 5 property line with a private easement being over the service line by steel 

encasement bore and jack under Forest Oaks Lane. The estimated wastewater from this project is 

less than 2,500 gallons per day (100 gallons/1,000 square feet per State 2T rules). The City has 

adequate wastewater capacity available at the downstream Southeast Regional Pump Station and at 

the WRRF to meet this demand. 

C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 

1. UDO Watershed Overlay District requirements. 
 

These requirements in the UDO include the Back-Creek Watershed and Graham-Mebane Lake. The 

project is tributary to the Little Haw Creek; a Class V watershed and the Watershed Overlay District 

requirements do not apply to this project. This type of watershed classification (Class V) does not have 

density restrictions or built upon restrictions as required for the Graham Mebane Lake watershed. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

 

 

 
2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 

 

Sec. 5.1 in the UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and 5.1.F requires compliance 

with the Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance.  Built upon an area of more than 24% 

requires engineered stormwater controls. As this project exceeds the 24% threshold, proposed 

engineered stormwater controls are provided on the site plans and include a fenced wet pond with 

detention being provided for up to a 100 yr. storm event where post construction stormwater runoff 

peak discharges are no more than predevelopment rates. This wet pond serves as a shared device 

for Wendy’s, Chick-fil-a, Tractor Supply, and Chick-fil-a employee overflow parking. 

D. Storm Drainage System 
 

The UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The site plans include a storm drainage 

system layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and all being directed to the engineered 

stormwater control device located at the rear of the property. 

E. Street Access 
 

A TIA was required for this project with certain improvements being indicated as follows: 

 

F. Construction Plan Submittal 
 

The UDO requires final site construction plans to be submitted for TRC review and approval. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


 

VHB Engineering NC, P.C. (C-3075) 
Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com  

To: Ashley Ownbey  
Development Director 
City of Mebane 
 

Date: January 23, 2023 

C. N. Edwards Jr., PE 
District Engineer 
NCDOT Highway Division 7 District 1 Project #: 39160.00, Task 23 

 
 

From: Baohong Wan, PhD, PE Re: Mebane Tractor Supply Traffic Impact Analysis 
Technical Review 
Mebane, NC 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was prepared by Ramey Kemp Associates for the proposed Tractor Supply in the southeast 
quadrant of the intersection of Forest Oaks Lane and Wilson Road in Mebane, North Carolina.  Per request by the City 
of Mebane, VHB conducted an independent review of the Mebane Tractor Supply TIA.  This memo provides a list of 
critical findings, followed by an in-depth summary of study process and analysis results of the TIA. 

List of Mitigation Recommendations 
The following items in red should be considered in addition to mitigation measures that have been identified within the 
Mebane Tractor Supply TIA: 
› Forest Oaks Lane and Wilson Road 

o Provide a westbound left turn lane on Forest Oaks Road with minimal adequate storage and taper [as 
requested by NCDOT and the City of Mebane].  

› Forest Oaks Lane and Site Drive 1 
o Construct Site Drive 1 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 

operating under stop-control. 
o Due to intersection spacing concerns, permitting of a driveway at this location is subject to meeting 

adequate design and sight distance requirements. 
› Forest Oaks Lane and Site Drive 2 

o Construct Site Drive 2 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 
operating under stop-control. 

› Wilson Road and Site Drive 3 (not analyzed in the TIA) 
o Construct Site Drive 3 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 

operating under stop-control. 
› Multimodal Considerations: Compliance of multimodal transportation requirements should be examined to 

ensure adequacy of pedestrian, bike, and transit facilities along the property frontage.  Additional crosswalks 
should be considered at the intersection Wilson Road and Forest Oak Lane.  



Ref:  39160.00, Task 23 
January 23, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

General Comments 
Wilson Road Connector 

› Wilson Road Connector is shown in STIP I-5711 roadway design files, signal design plans (Inv# 07-2060), and 
site plan (Figure 2) included in the TIA.  However, due to uncertainties of Wilson Road extension, the 
intersection of Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart Driveway was analyzed as a T-intersection in the TIA.  Traffic 
performance at this intersection could be worse if it is analyzed as a four-leg intersection. 

› The left-turn storage along Garrett Crossing (Walmart Driveway) at Mabane Oaks Road is insufficient and could 
potentially cause lane blockage and inefficient traffic operations.  Longer queue is expected with a fourth leg 
added at this location.  Restriping Garrett Crossing (Walmart Driveway) to provide longer storage should be 
considered to improve traffic operations and safety. 
Wilson Road Extension 

› Though not analyzed in this study, extension of Wilson Road to intersect Mebane Oaks Road opposite Walmart 
Driveway could result in different traffic ingress and egress patterns to Tractor Supply and other establishments 
along Wilson Road.  This potential change is anticipated to provide additional ways and alleviate traffic 
congestion along Wilson Road. 
Forest Oaks Lane and Site Drive 1 

› Spacing between Site Drive 1 and Wilson Road is less than ideal for full movement access considerations.  
Limiting traffic movements to right-in/right-out at Site Drive 1 may be considered if adequate traffic circulation 
can still be provided. 
Wilson Road and Site Drive 3 

› Site Drive 3 on Wilson Road was omitted in the capacity analysis. Site Drive 3 should be subject to typical 
standards for laneage, sight triangle and IPS requirements. 
Synchro Capacity Analysis  
› The third northbound lane along Mebane Oaks Road at Forest Oaks Lane is coded as a pocket lane on the 

right-hand side of road with 350’ of storage in Synchro, while this storage is omitted in the TIA report.  Field 
check indicates that this pocket lane is located on the left side of northbound approach.  

› Synchro models have several extra intersections with zero traffic volumes.  Although traffic operations at these 
intersections are not required to be analyzed in the TIA, including them in Synchro models may have slight 
impact on corridor signal timing optimization and traffic simulation results.  

Summary of TIA Assumptions and Results  

Development Plan 
The proposed Mebane Tractor Supply will consist of 21,200 square feet (sf) of retail space. According to the TIA, the 
proposed development is expected to generate 361 daily trips with 34 trips (21 entering, 13 exiting) occurring in the 
AM peak hour and 63 trips (29 entering, 34 exiting) occurring in the PM peak hour.   
Access to the site is to be provided via two (2) new full movement driveways on Forest Oaks Lane and one (1) new full 
movement driveway on Wilson Road that will align with an existing driveway.  

Study Area and Analysis Scenarios 
The TIA included capacity analyses during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under the following scenarios: 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 23 
January 23, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

› Existing (2023) Conditions 
› Background (2024) Conditions 
› Build-out (2024) Conditions 

Through coordination with NCDOT and the City of Mebane, the following intersections were analyzed in the TIA: 
› Mebane Oaks Road and Forest Oaks Lane – Signalized 
› Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart Driveway – Signalized 
› Forest Oaks Lane and Wilson Road – Unsignalized 
› Forest Oaks Lane and Proposed Site Driveways (2) – Unsignalized 

Existing and No-Build Analysis Assumptions 
Existing (2023) analysis was conducted based on traffic counts collected in February 2023 during weekday AM (7 to 9 
AM) and PM (4 to 6 PM) peak hours while area schools were in session. 
The No-Build scenario included an annual growth rate of one percent (1.0%) between the existing year (2023) and the 
future analysis year (2024).  In addition, site trips due to the following adjacent development were identified and 
included in the future year analyses: 
› Deep River 
› The Meadows 
› Summit Church 
› Meadowstone Townhomes 
› McKays Book Store 
› Mebane Oaks Mixed-Use (Evolve) 

Based on coordination with NCDOT and the City, it was determined that roadway improvements that will be made by 
the NCDOT State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) project I-5711 should be considered in this study. 
Within the study area, STIP I-5711 is expected to provide additional northbound and southbound through lanes along 
Mebane Oaks Road from Arrowhead Road to the signalized Wal-Mart driveway. 

Trip Generation & Distribution 
Since the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition does not include enough data points for a Tractor Supply Store (ITE 
Code 810), multiple land uses were considered to estimate the trip generation potential for the proposed development. 
According to the TIA, the proposed development is expected to generate 361 daily trips with 34 trips (21 entering, 13 
exiting) occurring in the AM peak hour and 63 trips (29 entering, 34 exiting) occurring in the PM peak hour.   
 
Traffic assignment for the development was based on the following trip distribution assumptions: 
› 60% to/from the north via Mebane Oaks Road 
› 30% to/from the south via Mebane Oaks Road 
› 10% to/from the north/east via Wilson Road 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 23 
January 23, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Capacity Analysis Results 
Capacity analyses in the TIA were conducted following the NCDOT Congestion Management Capacity Analysis 
Guidelines.  The analysis results and mitigation determinations are summarized below for each individual intersection, 
while LOS and delay are reported and summarized for stop-controlled approaches at unsignalized intersections.   

Mebane Oaks Road and Forest Oaks Lane (signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
2023 Existing 2024 No-Build 2024 Build 2024 Build w/ Imp 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

1 

Mebane Oaks Road & Brundage 
Lane/Forest Oaks Lane 

C 
(31.8) 

C 
(30.4) 

C 
(20.6) 

B 
(19.5) 

C 
(21.0) 

C 
(20.6) 

C 
(21.0) 

C 
(20.6) 

Eastbound E-68.3 E-67.6 D-53.0 D-49.0 D-53.0 D-48.5 D-53.0 D-48.5 
Westbound F-80.9 F-82.5 D-51.1 D-50.2 D-50.6 D-50.2 D-50.6 D-50.2 
Northbound B-16.6 B-17.3 B-17.1 B-13.9 B-17.8 B-15.2 B-17.8 B-15.2 
Southbound C-20.5 C-22.7 A-7.7 B-12.1 A-8.1 B-12.9 A-8.1 B-12.9 

The TIA indicated that the signalized intersection is expected to operate at LOS C during both the AM and PM peak 
hours under the Build-out conditions with the STIP I-5711 improvements in place. Since the intersection is expected to 
operate acceptably with the development in place, no improvements were recommended in the TIA. 

Mebane Oaks Road and Wal-Mart Driveway (signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
2023 Existing 2024 No-Build 2024 Build 2024 Build w/ Imp 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

2 

Mebane Oaks Road & Walmart Driveway A 
(9.6) 

C 
(20.9) 

A 
(7.6) 

B 
(19.3) 

A 
(7.7) 

B 
(19.3) 

A 
(7.7) 

B 
(19.3) 

Eastbound D-44.0 D-41.5 D-51.9 D-48.6 D-51.9 D-48.6 D-51.9 D-48.6 
Northbound A-2.3 A-5.0 A-2.2 A-5.1 A-2.2 A-5.1 A-2.2 A-5.1 
Southbound A-6.9 B-14.1 A-3.9 B-10.7 A-4.1 B-11.0 A-4.1 B-11.0 

The TIA indicated that the signalized intersection is expected to operate at LOS A or B during both the AM and PM peak 
hours under the Build-out conditions with the STIP I-5711 improvements in place. Since the intersection is expected to 
operate acceptably with the development in place, no improvements were recommended in the TIA. 

It should be noted that Wilson Road Connector is shown in STIP I-5711 roadway design files, signal design plans (Inv# 
07-2060), and site plan (Figure 2) included in the TIA.  However, due to uncertainty of Wilson Road extension, the 
intersection of Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart Driveway was analyzed as a T-intersection in the TIA.  Traffic 
performance at this intersection could be worse if it is analyzed as a four-leg intersection. 

In addition, the left-turn storage along Garrett Crossing (Walmart Driveway) at Mabane Oaks Road is insufficient to 
accommodate projected queuing, and it could potentially cause lane blockage and inefficient traffic operations.  Longer 
queue is expected with a fourth leg added at this location.  As a result, restriping Garrett Crossing (Walmart Driveway) 
to provide longer storage length may be considered to improve traffic operations and safety at this location. 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 23 
January 23, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Forest Oaks Lane and Wilson Road (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
2023 Existing 2024 No-Build 2024 Build 2024 Build w/ Imp 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

3 

Wilson Road & Forest Oaks Lane N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Northbound B-13.6 C-16.2 C-21.0 E-40.0 C-22.4 F-53.5 C-22.4 F-53.5 
Southbound A-9.5 B-10.0 B-10.1 B-11.0 B-10.4 B-11.6 B-10.4 B-11.6 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled northbound approach is expected to experience delay increases and LOS 
degradation under the Build-out conditions. However, the maximum queue lengths are expected to exceed four or five 
vehicles, and traffic operations could experience improvement once Wilson Road is extended to connect to the 
connector road that intersects Mebane Oaks Road opposite Walmart Driveway.  On the other hand, a westbound left-
turn lane is considered and recommended based on the coordination with NCDOT: 
› Provide a westbound left turn lane on Forest Oaks Road with minimal storage and taper [as requested by 

NCDOT]. This improvement could be provided by restriping the existing pavement on Forest Oaks Lane to 
provide storage for 1-2 vehicles.  

Forest Oaks Lane and Site Drive 1 (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
2023 Existing 2024 No-Build 2024 Build 2024 Build w/ 

Imp 
AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

4 
Site Drive 1 & Forest Oaks Lane - - - - N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Northbound --- --- --- --- A-8.8 A-9.3 A-8.8 A-9.3 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled Site Drive 1 is expected to operate at LOS A during both the AM and PM 
peak hours under the Build-out conditions.  Due to intersection spacing concerns, permitting of a full movement 
driveway at this location is subject to NCDOT review and approval.  Nevertheless, the following improvements were 
recommended in the TIA to be constructed with the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 1 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 

operating under stop-control. 

Forest Oaks Lane and Site Drive 2 (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
2023 Existing 2024 No-Build 2024 Build 2024 Build w/ 

Imp 
AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

5 
Site Drive 2 & Forest Oaks Lane - - - - N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Northbound --- --- --- --- A-8.7 A-9.0 A-8.7 A-9.0 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled Site Drive 2 is expected to operate at LOS A during both the AM and PM 
peak hours under the Build-out conditions.  The following improvements were recommended in the TIA to be 
constructed with the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 2 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left-right turn lane 

operating under stop-control. 


	March 2024 Planning Board Agenda.pdf
	February 2024 PB Minutes.pdf
	0. Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning Amendment- Tractor Supply.pdf
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Application Brief
	See Planning Project Report for more details.
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	1. Tractor Supply Preliminary Slides.pdf
	Slide 1: Request to modify a conditional zoning district, B-2(CD), by Hendon Tiller Mebane 3.0 LLC    
	Slide 2: Tractor Supply Conditional Zoning Request
	Slide 3: Tractor Supply Conditional Zoning Request
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Tractor Supply Conditional Rezoning Request
	Slide 6
	Slide 7

	5. Planning Project Report - Conditional Rezoning Amendment - Tractor Supply.pdf
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 3
	Land Use Report page 5
	Utilities Report page 8
	Staff Recommendation page 9
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


